PRINCE GEORGE'S COUNTY
HISTORIC SITE SUMMARY SHEET
Survey #: P.G. #86A-27 Building Date: ca. 1745-1930's

Building Name: Croom Historic Survey

Location: Croom Road in the Vicinity of Croom Airport, Duley Station and
and St. Thomas Church Roads

Description

The Croom survey district is located in rural southeastern Prince
George's County, in an area of winding roads and rolling farmland inter-
spersed with wooded areas. The survey district encompasses the Village of
Croom, which contains 46 dwellings and a number of agricultural buildings
scattered along 1.6 miles of the Croom Road; twenty-nine of these structures
contribute to the historic and architectural character of the village. The
character of the area is defined by the scenic quality of Croom Road, its two
story, frame, late 19th and early 20th century dwellings, and its vistas of
open fields, barns and wooded areas.

Significance

The Village of Croom is located on what was the major north-south road
in southeastern Prince George's County throughout the 18th, 19th and early
20th centuries. According to local tradition, Croom Road began as a path
along a north-south ridge, created by native Americans. It existed as a
road at the time of the location of St. Thomas Chapel (#1 in this survey) in
the Croom area in 1745. General Ross used Croom Road in the British march
from the Patuxent River to Washington, D.C. in August 1814. Both the Village
of Croom and Croom Road were named for a large tract of land just northwest
of the village. The tract called Croom was patented in 1671 and owned during
the 18th and early 19th centuries by the Clagett family. Most of the fabric
of the present Village of Croom dates from the second quarter of the 19th
century through the 1930's.
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Maryland Historical Trust
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1 . Name (indicate preferred name)
historic  croon Historic Survey
and/or common
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Street & number Croom and St. Thomas Church Roads —— not for publication
city, town Croom —— vicinity of congressional district 4
state Maryland county Prince George's
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—X_ district — public X__ occupied —X agriculture —  Mmuseum
= building(s) ____ private —— unoccupied —X commercial ——  park
-structure “_X both ) —— work in progress —— educationai —X__ private residence
— site Public Acquisition Accessible —— entertainment —x religious
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—_ being considered X__yes: unrestricted —— industrial — transportation
_Xnot applicable —_no — military —_ other:

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners)

name Multiple Owners

street & number telephone no.:

city, town Croom state and zip code Mp 20773

S. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse liber
street & number Main Street : folio
city, town Upper Marlboro state mvp

6. Representation in Existing =istorical surveys

—

HABS and Historic Sites and Districts Plan (Only partially represented)

date 1936 (HABS) ang July 1981 —x federal ____ state . —%-county __  |ocai

depository for survey records MNCPPC History Division

city, town .Riverdale state VD
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Condition Check one Check one
—-— excellent —— deteriorated ____ unaltered —X_ original site

- good —__ruins —X_ altered ——moved date of move
. = fair —— unexposed

Prepare both a Summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.
The Croom survey district is located in rural southeastern Prince
George's County, in an area of winding roads and rolling farmland inter-
spersed with wooded areas. The survey district encompasses the Village of
Croom, which contains 46 dwellings and a number of agricultural buildings
scattered along 1.6 miles of the Croom Road; twenty-nine of these structures
contribute to the historic and architectural character of the village.

The character of the area is defined by the scenic quality of its road,
its two story, frame, late 19th and early 20th century dwellings, and its
vistas of open fields, barns and wooded areas,

Croom Road is a curving, two-lane thoroughfare which has retained its
rural quality. Other scenic, rural roads enter Croom Road within the survey
district. Croom Airport Road and St. Thomas Church Road form the district's
northern and southern boundaries. Duley Station Road intersects Croom Road
from the west, in the middle of the district. All three are two-lane roads
which wind through farmland and woods, providing scenic approaches to Croom.

The topography of the are: is gently rolling, and some of the dwellings
within the district are locate- above the road on small knolls or hillsides,
making them highly visible; otrers are situated close to the road. A few are
set far back, hidden by trees and accessible by long gravel lanes.

The period of significance for the Croom survey district begins with the
1745 construction date of St. Thomas Church (P.G. #86A-7) and continues
through the Tate 1930's. The majority of the contributing -buildings were
constructed in the third quarter of the 19th century and the early twentieth
century. These Victorian frame dwellings can be divided into several
vernacular house types, defined by their architectural characteristics. A
predominant type is the gab]e-front-and-wing house plan, characterized by two
story construction. It has a main facade of three or four bays, composed of
@ one bay gable end with a two or three bay gable wing attached so that the
roof ridges are at right angles, In most cases a one story entrance porch
crosses the main facade of the wing. Buildings 13, 36, 38, 43, and 45 in the
survey inventory are of this type. A second house type dating from the same
period is a two story frame "I" house with a rear "T" or ell wing. Some of
these dwellings additionally have a center front cross gable. This plan is
also characterized by a one story entrance porch of several bays. Buildings
1, 12, 16, 19, 24, 27, 32, 35, 41 and 46 in the survey inventory are of this
type. A variation of these two plans is a simple two story frame, gable roof
dwelling of square or rectangular plan with a facade-wide one story entrance

" porch, Building 22 displays these characteristics.
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Three dwellings, buildings 2, 3 and 37, date to the middle rather than
the lTate nineteenth century. They are larger and more architecturally
detailed than most of the dwellings in the area, displaying elements of the
Greek Revival and Italianate styles. All three have historical as well as
architectural significance.

Buildings in Croom dating from the 1920's and 1930's are of the bungaiow
style, characterized by one-and-one-half-story height, brick or frame con-
struction, deeply overhanging eaves and a facade-wide entrance porch incor-
porated beneath the building's roofline. Some feature gable roof dormers or
use decorative building materials such as wood shingles or rusticated founda-
tion stones. Buildings 6, 9 and 31 are of this type. Some of the dwellings
have incorporated Tidewater Colonijal architectural characteristics to create
a Tidewater Colonial Revival style., These are Characterized by a dual slope
gable roof with a steep pitch over the main house and a shallower pitch over
a facade-wide porch. Other characteristics are their story-and-one-half
height and wide gable end brick chimneys., Building number 33 displays these
characteristics, .

The majority of the contributing buildings in the survey district are
architecturally significant; some are also notable for their historical
association with the development of Croom. The non-contributing buildings
are primarily one-story frame or brick residences built within the past two
decades. A building inventory of contributing and non-contributing buildings

"lows. County designated Historic Sites and Historic Resources are listed -
~st. The rest of the survey begins at the north end of the district and
moves south,

C = Contributing
NC = Non-contributing

1. (C) P.G. #86A-7, St. Thomas Church at Croom, (ca. 1745), 14300 St.
Thomas Church Road, map 128, parcel 57.

The original Georgian style building, laid in Flemish bond brick,
was five-by-one bays, one-story, with a cruciform plan. During the
1850's the round arch windows were remodeled to pointed arch Gothic
style, with stained glass. A bell tower containing the church
entrance was added to the west yable end in 1888, The building is
on a large lot, surrounded by a graveyard, mature oaks, cedars and
dogwood trees, and a ca. 1907 cast iron fence. A ca. 1970's one-
story brick church office building just northwest of the church is
unobtrusive because its construction materials, arrangements of
bays and roofline are Cmpatible with the design of the church,
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2. (C) P.G. #86A-8, old St. Thomas Church Rectory, (1853, 1887), 10108
Croom Road, map 128, parcel 61,

A large frame dwelling of cruciform plan, unusual in Prince
George's County. It js two-and-one-half stories with cross- -
gables, having a two-bay, gable front main block and narrower
flanking gable wings., The éntrance is centered in the south gable
end, sheltered by a porch with turned and bracketed posts. High in
each of the north and south gables ig a triangular-headed 4/4
double-hung-sash window. Others are 6/6 with louvered shutters,
The building is Covered with white-painted wood shingle. It is
located northeast of St. Thomas Church in a wooded area, reached by
a long grave] drive from Croom Road.

7 3. (C) P.G. #86A-10,11, John W. Coffren house and store, (1853, 1861),
10007 Croom Road, map 128, parcel 5,

The Coffren Store, ca. 1853, is a simple three- by-two bay two-
story rectangular frame structure with a salt-box roofline. Its
6/6 double-hung-sash windows are covered by iron bars, and the
building is sided with rough hewn horizontal wood siding. The
Coffren house, ca. 1861, is a three-by-two bay, two-and-one-half-
story frame gable roof dwelling with parged interior south gable
end chimneys and a one-story, ca. 1890'sg south kitchen wing.
Interior moldings, mantels and stairway are Greek Revival in style.
The cornice js bracketed with heavy, Italianate brackets. West of
the house and soyth of the store is g complex of late 19th/ear1y
20th century outbuildings in good repair,

4. (C) P.G. #86A-6, Dr. William H. Gibbons House, (ca. 1893), 10205 Croom
Road map 128, parcel 42,

A large two-and-one-half—story cross-gable frame dwelling with a
one-story bracketed entrance porch across the east (main) facade.
The gable ends have returned cornices and pentagonal windows
centered at the attic level., Asbestos shingle covers the originail
siding. A one-story room built into the el formed by the east and
South gables served as the doctor's office,

5. (C) P.G. #86A-9, the old Croom Schoo1, (ca. 1907), 10700 Croom Road,
map 128, parcel 8.

A one-and-one-half—story Cross gable building with entrance in the
central projecting bay on the south facade. The ‘structure is of
frame, covered With tan stucco. Cornices are boxed with crown
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molding and returns on the east, south and west gable ends. There
is a lunette window centered in the south gable above the entrance.
Windows are long, 6/6 double-hung-sash .and have plain board sur-
rounds. The interior was originally one large classroom. It was

the district. The building stands on a knoll east of and within
sight of Croom Road.

6. (C) 9312 Croom Road (ca. 1920's), map 119, parcel 4,

A one-and-one-half-story frame bungalow of 3 x 2 bays. The deep 3
bay entrance porch is covered by gable roof overhang. Two second
story gable dormers have double 3/1 double-hung-sash windows .
Closed pediment gable ends. Building, porch and porch posts rest
On a rock-faced cement block base. Siding is ivory- colored
asbestos shingle.

7. (NC) 9316 Croom Road, map 119, pacel 10,

One-story gable entrance brick cottage of ca. 1950's or 1960's
—_ building date.

3. (NC) 9400 Croom Road, map 119, parcel 10,

One-and-one-half story frame cottage resting on a cement block
foundation, dating from the 1950's or 1960's,

9. (C) 9402 Croom Road (ca. 1920's), map 119, parcel 10.

Three-by-two bay, one-and-one-half story frame gable roof bungalow.
One bay central entrance porch is roofed by a projecting loft level
pedimented cross gable with centered rectangular window. Porch has
wide frieze, half Doric columns on high rusticated cement block
bases. Building rests on high rusticated cement block foundation
and is covered with German siding. Windows are 3/1 double-hung-
sash,

10. (NC) 9404 Croom Road map 119, parcel 10.

Three-by-three bay, two story gable roof frame dwelling covered

with aluminum siding. May be an older structure but altered and
lost all integrity, dating from the early 20th century,
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1. (C)

12. (C)

13. (C)

14, (NC)

15. (NC)

9410 Croom Road (ca. early 20th century), map 119, parcel 9,

Two story, four-by-one bay gable roof frame dwelling covered with
white-painted asbestos shingle. Double 1/1 windows have fixed -
Shutters. Modern two story one bay entrance portico on third bay
1S surmounted by a gable pediment, Building rests on a cement
block foundation, has modern additions to the rear. The building
is significant for its “I" house plan and retains integrity of plan
despite new windows and entrance treatment,

9405 Croom Road (ca. late 19th century), map 119, parcel 38,

A three-by-one bay, two story gable roof frame “I" house. Central
entrance flanked by 6/6 double-hung-sash windows. Second story
windows are single 6 light panes. First story sheltered by a 3 bay
shed roof screened entrance porch. The roof is of corrugated
metal, the wall covering horizontal wood siding. A very large old
hickory tree stands Just south of the house. The house is located
in a wooded area, approximately 500 feet west of Croom Road,
reached by an unpaved lane.

9500 Croom Road (ca. 19/early 20th century), map 119, parcel 9,

Two story frame, gable roof ell-shaped dwelling ‘covered with grey
asphalt shingle. Gab]e-front-and-wing plan, 3x2 bays. Three bay
hipped roof screened entrance porch and 2/2 double-hung-sash
windows with wide wood surrounds. Plain boxed cornice, corrugated
metal roof. House rests on a poured cement foundation. A cor-
belled brick chimney is centered at the gable ridge of each wing.

East side of Croom Road, map 119, parcel &,

One story, and gable entrance cement block and brick church
building, dating from the 1969's - 197¢0's,

9522 Croom Road, map 119, parcel 7.

One story frame rambler covered with aluminum siding and resting .on
a cement block base, dating from the 197¢0's. .
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16. (C) East of Croom Road (ca. early 20th century), map 119, parcel 6.

Two story, three-by-three bay gable roof frame dwelling with an
extended gambrel roofline to the rear. The central entrance is .
flanked by 6/6 double-hung-sash windows with plain wood surrounds,
The wall covering is asbestos shingle, the roof Covering corrugated
metal. A brick Chimney at the gable ridge is slightly off-center,
The house rests on cement piers.

17. (NC) 9501 Croom Road, map 119, subdivision 9557,

The dwelling is a one-and-one-half story brick and frame rambler
built in the 1980's.

18. (NC) 9534 Croom Road, map 119, subdivision 8782, parcel 19.

Two story brick and frame dwelling with gable front entrance,
recently completed, not visible from Croom Road. Three early
twentieth century frame barns west of the house are visible from
the road and contribute to the rural character of the area,

19. (C)  P.G. #82A-31, Brooks-Cox House, (ca. late 19th, early 20th
century), 9601 Croom Road map 119, parcel 84,

turned and chamfered posts. Windows are 2/2 double-hung-sash. The
house is covered with vinyl siding resembling its original German
siding. It rests on a cement foundation and has a corrugated metal
roof. ‘There are north and south gable end interior brick Chimneys.
The house is on a hillside west of Croom Road and is highly visible
from the road.

20. (NC) 9600 Croom Road, map 119, parcel 4.
Located on the west side of Croom Road. A large ca. 1980's two

story dwelling with deeply sloping gable roof, constructed of light
pink brick. :
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21.- (NC) East side of Croom Road, map 119, subdivision 8782, parcel 3.

Brick and frame one story rambler, ca. 1980's.

22. (C) 9604 Croom Road (ca. late 19th/early 20th century), map 119, subdi-
vision 8782 Parcel 2.

Dwelling is frame, 3x2 bays with an asphalt shingle gable roof.
Three bay west (main) facade has central entrance sheltered by a
hipped roof, three bay entrance porch supported by plain wood
posts. Windows are 6/6 double-hung-sash. The house and porch rest
on a cement foundation. The building is covered with asbestos
shingle siding and has two interior brick chimneys at the gable
ridge, north and south of center,

23. (NC) 9607 Croom Road, map 119, parcel 72, ca. 1960's - 1970's,

A one story gable roof frame cottage covered with vinyl siding, ca.
1960's-1970's,

24, (C)  wWeems House, (ca. late 19th/early 20th century), 9608 Croom Road,
map 119, subdivision 8782, parcel 1.

The house is approximately 100 feet east of Croom Road, easily

visible from the road. Two story three-by-one bay frame structure

with an asphalt shingle gable roof. Covered with horizontal sid-

ing. Pedimented center-front cross gable. Windows are 1/1 double-
hung-sash with black louvered shutters., Central chimney at the .
gable ridge. A three bay shed roof entrance porch on the west !
(main) facade was enclosed and incorporated as an interior room.

25. (NC) East of Croom Road, (ca. late 19th/early 20th century), map 119,
parcel 22, -

A brick and frame rambler of ca. 1980's construction,

26. (C) Country Corner Store, (ca. late 19th/early 20 century), 9701-9703
Croom Road (ca. late 19th/early 20th century) map 119, parcel 117,

A compound building with a rectangular 2 story frame residence on

the north and a rectangular 2 story frame store to the south. The

structures share 3 common side wall. The house is setback, 3 x 2
—_ bays with an entrance in the third bay, through a door having 3
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Tower panels, an upper glass light, and a transom. The entrance ig
sheltered by a 3 bay entrance porch with turned and chamfered posts
which wraps around the north facade of the building. The gabie
roof is covered with patterned tin. The exterior is covered with
white-painted asbestos shingle. There is a corbelled interior _
brick chimney on the south and west (rear) roof ridge. The store
1S two-by-two bays with a gable front entrance sheltered by a 2 bay
shed roof porch. Windows are 6/6 sash with plain wood surrounds.

There are overhanging eaves with projecting rafter ends. A one
story lean-to addition with a central entrance extends across the

27. (C) 9705 Croom Road (ca. early 20th century), map 128, parcel 51.

Located on a hill east of and overlooking Croom Road. A 2 story
frame "T" shaped dwelling of 3x1 bays, covered with brick veneer,
There is a center front Ccross gable surmounting the entrance
facade. Windows are 2/2 double-hung sash. The first story is
sheltered by a 3 bay hipped roof entrance porch with turned and
chamfered posts. The building has an asphalt shingle roof, a
cement base, a boxed cornice and a one story semi-octogonal pro-
Jecting bay on the south facade.

¢8. (NC) - 9709 Croom Road, map 128, parcel 63.

Modern 1 story “y* shaped frame dwelling with two projecting front
(west) gable ends and a central entrance sheltered by a porch
between the two gables, ca. 1970's.

29. (C) 9710 Croom Road (early 20th century), map 128, parcel 35.

A two-part building with a one story gable front entrance wing on
the road. The wing has horizontal wood siding, 6/6 double-hung-
sash windows and overhanging eaves with projecting rafter ends. To
the east is a two story gable roof wing with the roof ridge perpen-
dicular to that of the front wing. The two-story block has 6/6
windows, is covered with asbestos shingle and rests on a cement
foundation. On its north gable end is a one story shed roof two
bay frame addition. Both wings have cement chimneys.
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30.  (NC) 9815 & 9811 Croom Road, map 128, parcel 52 & 78.

Situated far west of Croom Road and not visible from the road, two
houses accessible from an unpaved lane. Both houses are of new.
(ca. 1980's) construction,

31. (C) 9801 Croom Road (ca. 1920's), map 128, parcel 53,

Frame three-by-three bay bungalow on a cement block base. Three
bay (west) entrance facade has center entrance sheltered by a three
bay screened entrance porch. Hipped roof with centered hipped
dormers facing west, north and south, Centered in each dormer is ga
circular window with wide plain surround. Windows are new, 1/1
double-hung-sash. House covered with wide red aluminum siding.
Although altered, having aluminum siding and new windows, the house
is significant for its bungalow house style. ’

32. (C) Halterman House, (ca. late 19th Century), 9805 Croom Road map 128,
parcel 88,

A three-by-one bay “I" house. The central entrance sheltered by
three bay hipped roof entrance porch with turned and chamfered

posts and jig sawn brackets. One bay second story porch centered
on facade, roofed by a Projecting pedimented center cross gable.

Chimneys flank the centerline at the gable roof ridge. North and
south gable ends have a two story projecting semi-octagonal bay.
The house is unusual for the projecting two story bays and for its
white-painted stuccoed wall surface, .

33. (C) Peter Duvall House, (ca. 1920's - 1930's), 9905 Croom Road map 128,
parcel 49,

Called the Maples, the house is a two story gable roof brick
bungalow with a one story north wing, in the Tidewater colonial
style. Three bay shed roof west entrance porch with wood columns
shelters a wide central entrance door with a fanlight. Double 6/6
sash windows with louvered shutters. Centered front gable dormer
is covered with saw-tooth shingles, has a triple window and over-
hanging eaves with projecting rafter ends. High north side
exterior chimney. The north wing has a screened porch across the
front, the porch roof incorporated into the slope of the wing's
gable roof, A gambrel roof, cement block two story double garage
and two gable roof -frame barns are southwest of the house. The
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34, (C) 9806 Croom Road (ca. early 20th century), map 128, parcel 1,

Three-by-two-bay frame, two story gable roof cottage. Main (east)
facade has a one bay pedimented entrance porch on third bay, with
turned and chamfered Posts. House is German sided and rests on 3
cement block foundation. Windows are 6/1 double-hung-sash with
plain wood surrounds. Wide cross gables surmount each facade.
Frame gable roof barn to rear. Cedar trees line the entrance
drive.

35. (C) Duvall tenant house, (ca. late 19th/early 20th century), west of
Croom Road, just north of Duley Station Road map 128, parcel 48.

The house is reached by a steep gravel drive into a hollow below
the road level. It is a one story, three-by-one bay gable roof
frame “I" house. Roof extends over rear lean-to addition, giving
the building a salt-box roofline. West (entrance) facade has two
entrances flanking a central 6/6 double-hung-sash window. There is
a central chimney at the ridge of the standing-seam metal roof.

The house covered with horizontal wood siding.

36. (C) 9910 Croom Road (ca. late 19th/early 20th century), map 128, parcel
74,

A four-by-one bay ell-shaped frame dwelling with a gable front and
wing plan. A hipped roof entrance porch crossing the first story
in ell has been enclosed, A corbelled brick chimney is centered at
roof ridge. The dwelling is sided with white asbestos shingle,

37. (C) Blanche Ogle House, (ca. 1880's-1890's), 9912 Croom Road Blanche
Ogle House, map 128, parcel 36.

The house is a two part gable roof frame house consisting of a
two-and-one half story main block and a later two-story wing. The
main block is three-by-two bays with entrance in the third bay of
the south facade. An entrance porch on turned and bracketed posts
crosses the facade. The lapped horizontal wood siding is painted
barn red. Windows are 6/6 double-hung sash with narrow 4/4 windows
at loft level in the east and west gable ends. The building rests
on brick piers. East of the main block is a two-by-two bay, two
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38. (C)

39. (NC)

story wing on a brick foundation, with a shed roof entrance porch
dcoss the south facade. The house is located in fields east of
Croom Road, visible from the road, accessible by a Tong gravel
drive,

William F. Figuere House, (ca. late 19th/early 20th century), 10000
Croom Road map 128, parcel 40.

Two story, frame ell-shaped dwelling with a gable-end-and-wing
plan. A hipped roof screened entrance porch with a half-wall wraps
around the front gable and the ell. Windows are 6/6 double-hung-
sash with plain wood surrounds. The building is covered with white
asbestos shingle, the roof of standing seam metal. There is a
central and a south gable interior brick chimney,

10010 Croom Road, map 128, parcel 38,

Brick, one story rambler of ca. 1980°'s construction, set east of
Croom Road. Two metal roofed frame barns on the property, close to
the road, contribute visually to the rural character of the pro-
posed District.

Moore's Store, (early 20th century), 10104 Croom Road, map 128,
parcel 7.

A three-by-two bay, two story frame building with entrance through
the west gable end. The structure is German sided and rest on a
cement block base. The gable roof is covered with corregated
metal. There are two north and two south facing gable dormers.
The first floor interior is one large room used as a convenience
store. The building was built as a hall for St. Thomas Church, in
the early 20th century and was sold to Harry Moore in the early
1940's. Moore extended it one bay to the east and opened a store

Authur A. Duley House, (early 20th century), 10109 Croom Road,
map 128, parcel 6.

A "T" shaped frame, two story gable roof dwelling. The three bay
front (east) facade has a three bay entrance porch with turned
chamfered posts and Jjigsawn brackets. Windows on the facade are-
2/2 double-hung-sash with plain wood surrounds. It is covered with
horizontal wood siding and has a standing seam metal roof. The
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42. (NC) Northeast corner St. Thomas Church and Croom Roads, St. Thomas
Church Hall, (ca. late 1930's), map 128, parcel 57.

This building is quite visible at a prominent corner in the
community. It is a ] story gambrel roof rectangular hall with a
high cement block foundation. It is covered with horizontal wood
siding and has double gable end entrance doors., Its roofline and
construction materials are non-contributing features.

43. (C) P.G. #86A-24, Croom Industrial School, (ca. early 20th c.), 1440]
St. Thomas Church Road, map 128, parcel 89,

Two story frame ell-shaped dwelling covered with white aluminum
siding. It has a gable-end-and-wing plan with 1/1 double-hung-sash
windows and louvered shutters. The roof is asphalt shingle and the
—_— foundation is cement. An entrance porch crosses the north gable
end and wraps around the east facade. Entrance is in the first bay
of the three bay north gable end. The interior, subdivided for a
private residence, originally had two large classrooms and a
kitchen on the first story. There are small, frame gable roof
buildings built in the 1920's on the grounds, which served as
dormatories and classrooms. The main buildings are located on
tree shaded hillside on the south side of St. Thomas Church Road.

44. (NC) St. Thomas Rectory, 10303 Croom Road, (ca. 1960's), map 128, parcel
60.

The new rectory is a one story gable roof brick rambler built in
the early 1960's,

45. (C)  Robert N. Rollins House, (ca. early 20th‘century), 10401 Croom
Road, map 128, parcel 14,

The house is a two story frame structure with a gable-end-and-wing
plan. The entrance beneath the east (front) gable end is sheltered
by a two bay hipped roof porch with turned posts and Jigsawn




MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST

Survey No.Pgy, A-Z F

~

STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM

. : : 5
Description (continued) Section 7 Page

1 ?

1=

46. (C)

brackets. Windows are 2/2 double-hung-sash with aluminum louvered
shutters. A one story addition fills the ell. There is an
interior corbelled brick chimney at the south gable end. A complex
of agricultural outbuildings are to the west (rear) of the house.

Tayman House, (ca. early 20th century), 10400 Croom Road, map 128,
parcel 15,

A two-story frame “I" house of three-by- one bays, with an
off-center cross gable over the west (front) entrance in the second
bay. The space between the second and third bays on the front
facade is smaller than that between the first and second. The roof
is covered with standing seam metal, the siding is white asphalt
shingle. The house rests on a poured cement foundation. Windows
are 2/2 double-hung-sash. The three bay hipped roof entrance porch
rests on tapering wooden columns. Several large, mature maple
trees shade the house and yard,
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The Village of Croom is located on what was the major north-south road
in southeastern Prince George's County throughout the 18th, 19th and early
20th centuries. According to local tradition, Croom Road began as a path
along a north-south ridge, created by native Americans. It existed as a
road at the time of the location of St. Thomas Chapel in the Croom area in
17451 Croom Road is clearly marked as a major route from Charles County
to Upper Marlboro on Dennis Giffith's 794 map of Maryland. General Ross
used Croom Road in the British march from the Patuxent River to Washington,
D.C. in August 1814,

. w
/ Both the VillageJof Croom and Croom Road were named for a large tract

v of land_just north of the village. The tract called Croom was patented

in 16713 and owned during the 18th and early 19th centuries by the

Clagett family, Bishop Thomas John Clagett, 1743-1816, first Episcopal
Bishop consecrated in America, was born at the Croom homestead. Claggett
was the rector at St! Thomas Church in Croom from 1780-1810.4 He was
buried in the family cemetery on his estate, but his body was removed to
the Episcopal Church's National Cathedral in Washington, D.C. in 1398,

The Village of Croom dates from the second quarter of the 19th
century. Before it developed, those living on plantations in the area
obtained goods and services from the Patuxent River port of Nottingham or
the County Seat of Upper Marlboro, both within four miles of Croom. There
were too few small farms or non-farming residents of the County during the
early 19th century to spark the formation of a village.

In 1853 John W. Coffren established a general store in Croom and
opened the area's first Post Offjce.5 Number 3 in this survey, Coffren's
house and store, are landmarks in Croom and are designated County Historic
Sites. During the 1850's a blacksmith, wheelright and several houses were
located in the vicinity of the store. St. Thomas Church had become the
center of a separate parish in 1850 and a new rectory at Croom was begun at
this time. The old St. Thomas Rectory, number 2 in this survey, is also a
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designated County Historic Site. During the decade of the 1860's a new
schoolhouse was built under John W. Coffren's supervision.6 At that

time the village included the residences of a miller, the rector, a
carpenter, the general store keeper, a mechanic and a blacksmith. By 1878
a second store was opened and the area included the residence of a
physician and a school teacher.’ - This small residential grouping of
professional and trades people continued through the 19th century, with the
addition of black farmers and farm laborers after the Civil War. Further
research on Croom should include research on long established black -
families such as the Brooks and Weems families.

In 1894 St. Simon's, a black Episcopal mission chapel affiliated with
St. Thomas at Croom, was estabh‘shed,8 with sisters of Frank P. Willes,
the rector at St, Thomas, offering religious instruction. Suzanne Willes
took up the cause of Negro education and in 1902 purchased 60 acres of land
on the south side of St. Thomas Church Road to begin an institution for the
education of Negro children, The Croom Industrial and Agricultural
Institute of Prince George's County was incorporated in 1903, with
St. Simon's Church, a parsonage, meeting hall and schoolhouse on the
property. Beginning in the 1920's the school also served as a home for
District of Columbia child welfare wards. Beset by financial difficulties,
the school finally closed in 1952.9 A one acre tract with school
buildings built in the 1920's remains in private ownership and is included
~ s number 43 in this survey. The St. Simon's Church fell into disuse when
Jlack and white congregations were consolidated at St. Thomas Church.
St. Simon's was demolished in 1974,

Croom today remains much as it has been since the early 20th century,
a quiet residential agricultural community,-served by two small stores and
St. Thomas Church. Its vistas of 19th and 20th century dwellings and
agricultural outbuildings across open fields remain unobstructed by devel -
opment at this time.

1 Louise Joyner Hienton, Prince George's Heritage, Maryland Historical
Society, 1972, pg. 63,

2y, Wilkinson, Diagrams and Plans Illustrative of the Principal
Battles, Treated of in Memoires of My Own Times, Philadelphia 1816, avail-
able at U.S. Library of Congress, Maps Division.

3 Heinton, op. cit., “Tracts Laid Out in Calvert County Prior to
April 23, 1696." '
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4 Heinton, op. cit., pg. 63.

5 Land‘Records of Prince George's County, C.S.M. 1:310; and Tables of
Post Offices in the United States, 1857.

6 Minutes of the Board of County School Commissioners, Prince George's -
County 1865-1868, available at the Prince George's County Board -of Educa-
tion.

7 United States Census Records, Prince George's County, 4th District,
1860, 1880, and 1900.

8 Pp.G. #86A-24 file, Historic Preservation Commission, Room 4010, County
Administration Building, Upper Marlboro, Maryland.

9 1bid.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 2 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Town is spread out along Route 382, the old road
from Upper Marlboro to Horsehead and Aquasco.

The principal building in the town is St. Thomas Church.
Originally a chapel of St. Paul's at Baden, it was almost
ideng%gﬁl in design. It has a three bay facade with a"“hipped
roof/Q ree story entrance tower (erected in 1888). The
windows now have gothic heads. The five bay side walls have
transcepts at the center bay. At the east end is an A-roofed
apse with a large Gothic window. The hipped roof is now re-
placed with an A-roof except on the transcepts. The coved
cornice continues across the gable end as well as raking along
the sides of the gable.

The old Croom Store and Post Office is a frame "salt-box"
building with a three bay facade. The central door is flanked
by iron barred windows. Next to the store is a large Federal
House (c. 1850) with double end chimneys on the south end and a
pbracketed cornice returned into the gable ends. The old meat-
house, a stable and a carriag%%%and behind the house.

3358

The old rectory and church hall are north of the church.
Both are frame buildings, the rectory a two story structure now
covered with shingles, built on an L-plan. The church hall, now
h store, is a frame building with a three bay gabled facade covers
vith shiplap siding; along the sides there are two dormer window;
The school, now covered with stucco, has a three bay porch along
the side of the building; the cornice returns into the gable end
Tt is now a house.

. Q
SNOITL1LONylsSNI

Vi

There are a number of post-Civil War houses. All are
frame and most are built on L-plans with porches on the main
f acades.
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